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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000
Revenue
Insurance premium revenue 5 269,493 259,413
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers 5 {119,181) (117,261)
Net premium revenue 150,312 142,152
investment income 6 15,332 20,381
Fee and commission revenue 1,259 3,967
Other income 7,093 6,905
Total revenue 173,996 173,405
Expenses
Claims expense 7 125,715 107,822
Reinsurance recoveries 7 (82,803) {73,192)
Net claims expense 42912 34,630
Commission expenses 7 57,368 68,775
Loan loss allowance 14 941 -
Operating expenses 7 58,517 56,728
Net change in life insurance contract assets 18 (22,240) {22,512)
Net change in life investment contract liabilities 19 5,477 11,492
Total expenses 142,975 149,113
Profit before tax from continuing operations 21,021 24,292
Income tax expense 8 12,767 10,174
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company 4 18,254 14,118
Basic and diluted earnings per share 28 8.73 8.05

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes




Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
Note $'000 $'000
Proflt for the year 18,254 14,118
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation movement, net of tax 8. 15 2,443 2,535
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,443 2,535
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company 20,697 16,653

The ahove consolidated statement of comprehensive incoms should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes



Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2019

2019 2018

Note $'000 $000
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 12,501 6,011
Restricted cash 10 10,268 10,087
Assels arising from reinsurance contracts 11 19,889 17,795
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 12 302,475 315,885
Derivative financial instrumeants 12 897 -
Life insurance contract assets 18 220,295 188,226
Loans and other receivables 13 10,344 18,132
Property, plant and equipment 15 30,074 26,887
Income tax assets 8 3,813 5227
Deferred tax assets 8 34,114 32,008
Intangible assets 16 2,835 3,049
Total assets 647,305 623,397
Liabilities
Payables and other financial liabilities 17 55,544 50,961
Current tax liabilities 8 643 20
Derivative financial instruments 12 568 756
Deferred tax liabilities 8 86,067 73,562
Life insurance contract liabilities ceded under reinsurance 18 41,457 31,628
Life investment contract liabilities 19 122,956 142,082
Deferred income 20 2,734 3,417
Total liabilities 309,969 302 428
Net assets 337,336 320,971
Equity
Share capital 21 81,586 81,586
Retained eamings 246,205 232,283
Revaluation reserve 9,645 7,102
Total equity 337,336 320,971

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying notes.

For and on behalf of the Board
12 September 2019

. ?-ﬂ;ll._,_“"' = @
Brian Blake é i 6 Lindsay Smarit
Chair / Director pwc
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Share Retained Revaluation
Note capital earnings reserve Total equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 2017 14,123 219,887 4,567 238,577
Profit for the year - 14,118 - 14,118
Other comprehensive income - - 2535 2,535
Total comprehensive income for the year - 14,118 2.535 16,653
Transactions with owners
Issue of share capital net of transaction costs 21 67,463 - - 87.463
Dividends 21 - (1,722) - (1.722)
Tatal transactions with owners 67,463 (1,722) - 65,741
Balance at 30 June 2018 81,586 232,283 7,102 320,971
Balance at 1 July 2018 as praviously reported 81,586 232,283 7,102 320,971
Impact of initial application of NZ IFRS 9 2 - (78) - {78}
lmpact of initial application of NZ IFRS 15 2 - {71) - (71)
Restated balance as at 1 July 2018 81,586 232,134 7,102 320,822
Profit for the year - 18,254 - 18,254
Other comprehensive income - - 2,443 2,443
Total comprehensive income for the year - 18,254 2,443 20,697
Transactions with owners
Dividends 21 - {4,183) - {4,183)
Total transactlons with owners - (4,183) - (4,183)
Balance at 30 June 2019 81,586 246,205 9,545 337,336

Tivn above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunchion with the accompanying noles.
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2018 2018
Note $'000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Premiums from life insurance contracts 268,381 259,941
Deposits from life investment contracts 4,602 5,231
Reinsurance received 84,154 84,921
Interest received 545 3,518
Dividends and distributions recelved 8,592 10,868
Other Investment (losses) (21) (32)
Other Income 7,725 9,544
Benefits paid under life insurance contracts {(123,367) (111,937)
Benefits paid under life investment contracts (29,213) {18,000)
Reinsurance premiums paid {118,330) (114,513)
Commission pald (61,718) {74,330)
Payments to suppliers and employees (51,421) {55,570)
income tax paid {332) {1,273)
Net cash (outflows) from operating activities (11,003) {1,634)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net proceeds from sales/{purchases) of financial assets 23,258 {56,578)
Purchase of intanglble assets {942) (421)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {732) {373)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 92 149
Net cash inflows/{outflows) from investing activities 21,676 (57,223}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Issue of ordinary shares, net of transaction costs 21 - 59,401
Ordinary dividends paid 21 (4,183) {1,722)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from financing activities {4,183) 57,679
Net increasel/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,490 {1,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the year 6,011 7,189
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 9 12,501 6,011
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Reconciliation of net profit after tax to cash flows from operating activities

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Net profit after tax 18,254 14,118
Non-cash items
Gains on sale of property, plant and equipment (47) (48)
Fair value gains on investments {6,565) (4,313)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 895 1,181
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force busines {683) (683)
Amortisation of intangibles 1,051 1,070
Other movements 105 143
Bad and doubtfu! debts . 1,360 12
Total non-cash Items (3,874) (2,635)
Changes In working capital
Dacrease in life insurance and life investment contract assets and liabilities {41,366) {(23,790)
{Increase)/decrease in other assets {763) 6,308
Increase in income tax balances 11,835 8,900
Increase/{decrease) in other liabilities 4,582 (2,888)
Increase/{decrease) in derivatives - 329 (1,648)
Total changes in working capital (25,383) (13,117)
Cash flows from operating actlvities {11,003) {1,634)

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles.
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

1. General information

Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limiled (‘Fidelity Life') {the Company') and its subsidiaries (together called the ‘Group') are financial services
companies that provide insurance and investment management services. The Company and its subsicharies are for-profit entities.

The Company is a limited llability company incorparated and domiciled in New Zealand. The address of its registered office is 81 Carlton Gore
Road, Newmarket, Auckland, New Zealand

‘These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors {the ‘Board') on 12 September 2019. The
directors do not have the power to amend the consalidated financlal statements once issued.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

Basls of preparation
The consolidated financtal statements have been prepared on the historical cost basls, modified by the revatuatlon of certain assels and liabilities
as stated.

The functional and presentation currency of the Group is New Zealand dolfars. All values in the consolidated financial statements and noles are
rounded to the nearest thousand ($'000), except when otherwise |ndicated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidation financial statements of the Group have been prepared In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice (GAAP?).
They comply with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ('NZ IFRS") and authoritative notices that are applicable
fo entitles that apply NZ IFRS. The consolidated financial statements also comply with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (1FRS’).

The Company Is registered under the Companies Acl 1993 and ficensed under the Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 ('IPSA’). The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Markets Conduct Act
2013,

Statutory fund

IPSA requires that a life insurer keep at [east one statutory fund in respect of its life insurance business The Company has established one
statutory fund 'Fidelity Life Statutory Fund Number 1’ (the 'Statutary Fund'). The aclivilies of the Statulory Fund are reported in aggregate with non-
statutory fund amounts in these consclidated financial statemenls. For details of the Statutory Fund refer to note 29

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiarles are all antities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from ils
involvement with the entity and has the abillty to affect those returns through ils power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated fram the
date on which control Is transfsrred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

In preparing the consolidated financial stalements, all intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses have been eliminated.

Fareign currency translation

Foreign currency transactlions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevaliing at the dates of the transactions.
Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the seftiement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In the consolidated income stalement.

Goods and Services Tax {GST)

The consolidated income stalement and the consaolidated statement of cash flows have been prepared so that the components are stated
exclusive of GST. All tems In the consolidated siatement of financial position are slated net of GST, with the exceplion of receivables and
payables, which include GST invoiced,

pwe
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting pollcies (continued)

Accounting policies

Accounting policles thal summarise the measurement basis used and that are relevant 1o the understanding of the consolidated financial
statements are provided throughout the accompanying notes. The accounting policies adopied have bean applied cons/siently throughout the

perlods presented in these consolidated financial statements.

a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable in the current reporting period which has led to the Group having lo change its
accounling policles. The Group has elected the modified retrospective approach for transition which recognises a cumulative adjustment 'n

opening retained earnings without restating the comparative figures as a resull of adopting the following standards
- NZ IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, and

- NZ IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Impact of Adoption

() Classification of financial assets and financial liabfiities

NZ IFRS 9 contains a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which the assets are
managed and the contraclual terms of the cash flows. On 1 July 2018, the Group's management assessed which business models appiled to the
financial assets held by the Group and classified them into the appropriate categories prescribed by NZ IFRS 5. Based on this assessment, no

material classification or measurement changes have arisen (refer 10 note 12),

(i) Derivatives and hedging activities

Prior fo 1 July 2018, the Group classified foreigh currency forwards and Interest rate swaps as held-for-trading derivatives and accounted for them
at falr value through profil or loss ('FVPL" and did not use these instruments for hedge accounting purposes. Subsequenl to adoption of N2 FRS

9, the Group continued not to apply hedge accounting rules to its derivative contracts (refer 1o note 12).

(i) Impairment of financial assets

NZ IFRS 9 replaces the ‘Incurred loss' model In NZ 1AS 38 with a forward looking ‘expected credit foss' {'ECL") model. Applying this new ECL
maodel, the Group recognised an additional $109,000 impairment provision against Its mortage and loan balances on 1 July 2018 (refer to nole 14).
In accordance with the transitional provislons in NZ IFRS 9, comparative figures have not been restated but rather a qumulative adjustment has

been made to opening retalned eamings.

In summary, the following adjustments were made 1o the amounis recognised in the balance sheel al the date of initial application (1 July 2018)

NZ IAS 39 carrying amount  Remeasurements NZ IFRS 9 carrying amount

Balance sheet {extract) 30 Jun18
$'000 $'000
Morigage and loan balances - impairment {2000 (109)

The total impact on the Group’s retalned earnings as at 1 July 2018 is as follows:

Closing retained earnings 30 June - NZJAS 39/ NZ |AS 18
Increase in Impairment provision

Increase in deferred tax assets relating to impairment provisions
Adjustment to retained earnings from adoption of NZ IFRS 9 on 1 July 2018
Opening retained sarnings 1 July - after NZ IFRS 9 restatement
{before NZ IFRS 15 restatement)

1Jul18
$'000

(309)

30 Jun 2018
$'000

232,283
{109)

3

8)

232,205

B
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2. summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
NZ IFRS 16 Revenus from Contracts with Customers

Impact of Adoption

The Group adopted the new accounting standard NZ IFRS 15! Revenue from Contracis with Customers for the current reporting period. The
adoption of the standard did not result in a material change in the reported resulls or the position of the Group

In accardance with the transitional provisions in NZ IFRS 15, the Graup has elecled the modified retrospactive approach for transition which
recognises a cumulative adjustment in opening retainad eamings without restating the comparative figures. The following adjustments were made
to the amounts racagnised In the balance sheel at the date of initlal application (1 July 2018):

NZ IAS 18
carrying NZ [FRS 15 carrying
amount Remeasurements amount
Balance sheet (extract) 30 Jun 18 1 Jul18
$'000 $'000 $°000
Refund liabilities
Adjusiment for lapses - {99) (29

The total impact on the Group's relained earnings as at 1 July 2018 (s as follows:

2018

$'000
Retained earnings - after NZ IFRS 9 restatement 232,205
Recognition of refund liability {99)
Increase in deferred tax assets 28
Adjustment fo retained earnings from adoption of NZ IFRS 15 {71)
Opening retained earnings 1 July - after NZ IFRS 9 and NZ IFRS 15 restatement 232,134

b) Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by the Group

NZ IFRS 16: Leases

NZ IFRS 16 was issued in Fabruary 2016, Once effective, it will result in almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet as the distinction
between operating and finance leases will be removed. Under the new standard, an asset {the right to use a leased item) and a financlal liability (to
pay rentals) will be recognised. The only exceptions will be for short-term and low-value leases.

The Group has reviewed all of its leasing arrangements in light of the new standard. The standard will primarlly affect the accounting for the
Group's operating leases.

As ai the reporting dale, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of $644,000 (see note 26). The Group's leasing activities are
not malerial and hence the Group does not expect any significant impact on the financial slatements. However, additional disclosures will be
required from the next financial year.

The standard is mandatory for the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2019. The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adoption
date of 1 July 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets for property leases wil be measured on transition as If the new rules had always been applied. All other right-of-use
assets will be measured at the amount of the lease Hability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses)

NZ IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

This standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of Insurance contracts that fall within the
scope of the standard, NZ IFRS 17 is mandalary for the Group's consalidated financial statements and /s expected to apply for periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022 It will replace the curreni standard, NZ IFRS 4: Insurance Contracts. The Group is still assessing the impact on the
Group's results.

b
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Preparalion of the consclidaled financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reporied
in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from these estimales  Estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors, as appropriale to the parlicutar circumstances. The Group reviews the
estimates and assumptions on an ongolng basis.

Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and eslimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are shown below:

{a) Life insurance and life Invesiment contract assels and flabilities

Liabilities and assets arising from life insurance, and related reinsurance, and life investment contracts are calculated at each reporting date
using mathemalical and stalislical models. These policyholder iabilil'es and asset valuations are made by suitably qualified members of the
New Zealand Soclety of Actuaries on the basis of actuarial methods sel oul in Profess|onal Standards issued by the New Zealand Society of

Acluaries, a full member of the Intemational Actuarial Associalion. The methodology takes into account the risks and uncerlainties of the
parficular classes of business written.

The key factors that affect the calculation of these fiabilities and assets are:
* The cost of providing benefits and administering these contracls,

» Mortality and morbidily experience on life insurance products:

* Persistency (or discontinuance) experlence, which affects the Grotip's abillly lo recover the ¢osl of acquiring new business over the lives of
the caniracts;

+ Long term Interest rates which affecl the rate al which cash flows are discountad, and
« Other factors such as regulation, compelition, the performance of the capital markets and general economic conditions.

Aclual experience will vary from the policyholder fabilities and assels calculated at the reporting date.

Refer to note 3 for mors detail on the valuation of the policyholder liabilities and assets and the assumptions applied.

(b} Deferred tax

Significant Judgement is required in determining the Group's deferred tax llabilifies and tax assets. In arriving at the deferred tax amounts, the
Group has made an asseasment of anlicipaled tax assels and liabifitles based on estimales of when additional taxes will be due and benefits will
arise. In respect of deferred tax on carried forward tax losses, this has included an assessmenl of tlie lkelihood of future laxable profits arising
in the foreseeable future and of shareholder continuity being maintained during that period.

Whaere the expected {ax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were Initially recorded, such differences will impact the
reporied profit or loss and current and deferred tax amounts in the period in which such determination is made

Refer to nole 8 for the deferred {ax accounting policy

Changes to comparatives
Discantinued operations

In the prior reporting peried, the investment linked business, Including risk policies that form part of this business, was classified as held for sale
and was Included as discontinued operations. In the current reporting period, this business ceased to meet the requirements of NZ IFRS §
necessary lo be classified as held for sale due to the discontinuation of the sales process. Accardingly, the amounts relating to discontinued
operations in the prior reporting perlod have been reclassified from their respective ine items in the consolidaled income staiement back to
continuing operations. The assels and Kabilites relating to the previously discontinued business have also been reclassified from their
respective line items in the consolidated statement of financial position 1o conlinued operations. This has resuited In $142,681,000 (2017:
$144,058,000) being reclassified from financial assets held for sale' to 'financlal assels at fair value through profit or loss’ and $142,082,600
(2017: $143,359.000) being reclassified from 'financial llabllities held for sale’ to 'fife Investment contract liabilities* as al 30 June 2018. The
cansolidated stalement of cash flows is nof impacted by the reclassification. The related notes on the consolidated statement of financlal
position have been reclaasified accordingly.

Relnsurance Receivables

Certain reinsurance receivables which had previously been classified under 'Other recelvables’ in Ihe Group's financial accounts have been
reclassified lo ‘Assels arising from reinsurance contracts’ in the consolidated statement of financial position in the current reporling period. The
balance as al 30 June 2019 is $2,858,000. Accordingly, the comparative *Assets ariging from reinsurance contracts' and '‘Other receivables’
balances have increased and decreased, respeclively by $4,592 000 (2017: $5,648,000). These reclassifications were made to better reflect the
nature of those relevant receivables as assets related to reinsurance

Other changes

Certain comparatives have been reclassified to ensure consistency with the presentation in the current year. Notable changes have been
footnoted throughoul the financial statements. All reclassifications and restalements have had no impact on net profit after laxation.

=
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

3. Actuarial methods and policies

The actuarial reports on the policy contract values and solvency calculations for the year ended 30 June 2019 were prepared
by the Chief Actuary, Nicholas Smart, M Com, FNZSA, FIAA. and for the year ended 30 June 2018 were prepared by the
Valuation Actuary, Darren Fleming BSce(Hons), FNZSA, FIA, with both year's reports reviewad by the Appainted Actuary John
Smith M.Sc. FNZSA, FIAA. Messrs Smart and Smith are satisfied as to the accuracy of the data from which the amount of the
policyholder liabilites and assets have been determined.

The values of the policyholder liabilitles and assets have been determined in accordance with Professional Standard 20 issued
by the New Zealand Soctety of Actuaries and the requirements of NZ IFRS 4 Insurance Contracls.

The projection method is used lo determine individual life insurance contract liabilities and assets. The projeclion method uses
expected cash flows (premiums, investment income, surrenders or bensfits payments, expenses) plus profit margins to be
released in future periods, o calculate the present value of life insuranca contract assets and liabllities.

The accumulation method is used to determine life iInvestment and group life contract liabiities and assets. A prospective
reserve is held for the potential shortfall if the market value of assets backing policies is insufficient fo cover guaranteed
maturity benefits.

The key assumptions used in determining life insurance and life investiment contract labilities and assets are:
Discount rates

Policyholder liability discount rates

At 30 June 2019 At 30 June 2018
Discounted cash flows on renewable risk plans and
level premium risk plans based on 10 year NZ 1.57% 2.85%
Government bond rate —gross interest rate
Non-participating assurances — net interast rate 1.13% 2.05%
Claim reserves and provisions for Investment
guaraniees — gross interest rate 1.57% 2.85%
Annuities — net interest rate 1.13% 2.05%
Parficipating plans with reversionary bonuses Derived
from expected after-tax return on the assets backing 1.80% 2.50%
the participating fund

Profit carriers
Policies are divided into related product groups with profit carriers and profit margins as follows:

Proﬁci—m . Carrier . _I
Risk i Expected chaims payments |
Savings business Funds under management/investiment management expenses |
All other policies ____|Bonuses

Maintenance expenses

Future maintenance expenses of policies are based on an analysis of existing and projected costs and product margins. Where
those expenses relate to life insurance, trauma and disability insurance it has been assumed that those expenses Increase at
the same rate that premiums increase - according o age rather than the inflation rate. Future inflation has been assumed to
be 2.0% p.a. (2018: 2.0%) for determining future expenses and inflation linked increases in benefits and premiums.

Tax

The rates of tax enacted or substantially enacted at the dale of the valuation are assumed to continue into the future, The
corporate tax rate used is 28% (2018: 28%). Life insurance assets and liabilities are calculated gross of tax with a separate
liability being held for tax.

B
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

3. Actuarial methods and policies (continued)
Mortality rates

Mortality rates for risk products are based on a proportion of the NZ10 Insured lives mortality table. These rates are adjusted
hased on the recent experience of the various products. Allowance is mads for the level of underwriting and the duration since
underwriting; smoker status and type of product.

Particlpating plans are assumed o expsrience mortality in line with NZ97(5) select morlalily table,

Annuitants are assumed to experience mortality in line with the IMAS2C20 / IFAG2C20 tables with an additionai age rating to
allow for future mortality improvements.

The mortality assumption for Yearly Renewable Term {'YRT') policies has heen increased by 5% since 30 June 2018. The age
rating for annuitant mortality has been strengthened and changed from being an age related table to a fixed age reductior of 30
manths for all annuitants.

Morbidity rates

Future morbidity experience is based an proportions of reinsurance rate tables and standard industry 1ables,

The proportions are based on recent experience and industry frends. Ad|justments have been made at 30 June 2019 to reflact
ihe maost recent experience against the latest reinsurance tables,

Rates of discontinuance
The range of rates of discontinuance assumed are shown in the table below:
2019 2018
Pallcyyear1 | Policyyear5 |Policyyear 10} Policyyeart | Policy year 5 | Policy year 10
E’ear[y Reneawable Term: 9.5% - 18% 10.0% - 20.0%
ump sum
Yearly Renewable Term: . o "
Income Protection 9.58% -19% 9.5% - 23.0%
Whole of Life and
Endowments including 3.0% 3.0%
participating contracts
Level Tenm 4.0% - 14.0% 4.0% - 20.0%
Automatic acceptance with
premiums limited to ten years 1.0% - 20.0% 1.0% - 20.0%
Automatic acceptance with
level or reviewable premiums 3.5% - 40.0% 3.5% - 40.0%

A rate of 1% for each year over age 60 (2018: 1% each year over age 70) which is capped at 5% from age 65 onwards is
assumed in addition to the above rates.

Surrender values

Surrander values are based on the provisions specified in the pollcy contracts and include a recovery of policy establishment
and maintenance costs. It is assumed that the current surrender value bases will be maintained.
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

3. Actuarial methods and policies {continued)

Participating business

Assumed future bonus ratas per annum for the malor classes of Individual participating business were:

At 30 June 2019

At 30 June 2018

Participating business ~ policies
with-profit assurances

Assumed that the current bonus
allocation will continue indefinitely. The
honus is equal to conservative porfolio
return on cash deposits.

Cash bonus on premium paid has ceased.

Assumed that the current bonus allocation
will continue indefinitely. The bonus is
equal to conservative portfolio relurn on
cash deposits.

Cash bonus on premium paid has
ceased.

Participating plans with
reversichary bonuses -

0.0% of the sum assured and reversionary

0.741% of the sum assured and

supporiable bonus rate bonus. revarsionary bonus.
Participating plans with

raversionary bonuses - current 0.000% 0.741%
bonus declaration

Policyholder's share of the surpius 83.3% 03.3%

in the participating pool

Profit Margins

Profit margins have been incorporated for existing product calegories to release those profits arising in the future which are not
in relation to the provision of the original acquisition cost as and when those profits are released. Profit margins were adjusted
to ensure that there was no capitalisation of future profits arising from changes to demographic assumpticns and rates used in
the projection. However, changes to economic and financial assumptions are capitalised.

Changes to underlying assumptions
Assumptions used for measuring life insurance contract liabilities and assets are reviewed each year. Where the review leads
to a change in assumpfions, the change is deemed to have occurred from the end of the year.

The financial effect of a change in discount rates resulting from a change in market conditions is recognised in the year that the

rates are changed. The financial effect of all other changes to assumptions is recognised in the consolidated income statement

over the future years during which tha services are provided to policyholders.

The impact of changss in actuarial assumptlons made during the reporting period are:

2019 2018

Effect on life Effect on iife
Effect on future Insurance Effect on future insurance
Assumption change profitmarging  contract assets profit margins  contract assets’
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Discontinuance rates 14,907 - {30,775) -
Pramiumn rates - . 17,975 -
Mortality / Morbidity rates {(12,16%) - 2,803 -
Reinsurance rate increases - - (11,077) -
Renewal expenses {16) - 2,186 -
Other modelling changes {18,565) (198} (5,396} (79)
Claims termination rates - - - 916
Discount rates 35,089 9,798 2,505 641
Total 19,264 9,800 (21,779) 1478

' The 2018 figures have been restated for cons stency.

Assets backing lifa insurance and life investment business
Investment assets inside the Statutory Fund are divided into asset sectors and ownership is pooled across policyholders
investing in a single sector portfalio, policyholders investing in a mult-sector portfolio, participating policyholders and
shareholders. Investment assets are administered in accordance with the Statement of Investment Policy & Objectives
adopted by the Board and the (nvestment Policy & Procedures Manual adopted by the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO'). pwc
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

4, Sources of profit

Profit for the year arose from

Life insurance contracts

Planned margins of revenues over expenses

Difference between actual and assumed experience

Effects of changes In underlying econoric and financial assumplions
Interest on deferred acquisition costs

Life investment contracts - liabilities
Difference between actual and assumed experience
Effects of changes in underiying assumptions

Investment earnings on assets in excess of policyholder liabilities
Shareholder tax

Non-statutory fund (before tax)

Profit after tax

8. Revenue

2019 2018
$'000 $000
18,697 19,081
(7,106) (7,826)
9,085 652
5,938 6,150
27,514 18,057
(62) 810
{187) (12)
(249) 798
3,404 5,020
(14,407) (9,460)
{1,008) (297)
18,254 14,118

Accounting policies
Insurance premium revenue

{iy Life insurance conlracls

(i) Life investment contracts

in the liabtlity for life investment contracts.

Insurance premium ceded fo reinsurers

outstanding amount at balance date is treated as a payable.

Other incoms

loss when it has been earned.

Premiums on life insurance contracts with a regular due date are recognised on an accruals basis. Where a paolicy
provides for a payment on a specific date, then such premiums are recognised as revenue when due. Unpaid
premiums on policles that are deemed to have lapsed at balance date are not recognised as revenue.

Amounts received under life investment contracts are separated into their fee and deposit components. The fee
compoenent is recognised as income an an accruals basis and the deposit componeni is recognised as an increase

Premiums ceded to reinsurers under reinsuranca contracts are recorded as an outwards reinsurance expense and
recognised when they become due and payable in accordance with the terms and conditions of the reinsurance
contracts. Where reinsurance is paid in advance the expense is recognised over the period of indemnity of the relevant
contract and a portion is treated at balance date as a prepayment. Where the reinsurance premium |s paid in arrears the

Cther Income Is primarily composed of reinsurance treaty policy administration fees. Revenue s recognised in profit and

pwe
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

5. Revenue (continued)

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Net premium revenue
Insurance premium revenue 269,493 259,413
Insurance premlum ceded to reinsurers {119,181) {117,261)
Total net premium revenue 160,312 142,152

8. Investment income

Accouniing policies
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method

Dividend and distribution income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends from equity
securities are recorded as revenue on the ex-dividend date.

Fair value gains and losses on financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss are recognised through the

consolidated income statement.

2019 2018

$'000 $000
Dividends and distributions 8,443 7,358
Net realised and unrealised gains 5,427 12,257
Total unit trusts 13,870 19,615
Interest received on investments at fair value through profit or loss 727 2,908
Net realised and unrealised gains - 1,284
Total cash, loans and debl securties 727 4,192
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) 766 {3,394)
Total derivatives 756 {3,394)
Other investment (losses) {21) (32)
Tatal investment income 16,332 20,381

7. Expenses
(a) Insurance claims and related reinsurance

Accounting policles

Claims

Life insurance contraci claims are recognised as an expense when a Jabiiity has been established. Claims under life
investment contracts represent withdrawals of investment deposits and are recognised as a reduction in life investment
contract liabilities.

Reinsurance recoveries
Reinsurance recoveries are recognjsed as revenue at the same time as the claim expense is recognised, if the
underlying policy 's reinsured.

pwec
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

7. Expenses (continued)

Claim and reinsurance recoveries are as follows: 2018 218
$'000 $'000
Death, disabilities and income protection claims 123,222 105,925
Maturities 126 128
Surrenders 1,236 612
Annuities 1,14 1,157
Total claims 125,715 107,822
Less: Reinsurance recoveries {82,803) (73,192)
Total net claims expense 42,912 34,630

(b} Commisslon and operatln_g_ expenses

b

i i]

(ih)

Accounting policies

Commission and operating expenses are recognised in tha consalidated income stalement on an accruals basis, unless
otherwise stated.

|Expenses are categorised into acquisition, maintenance or investment management on the basis of a detailed functional
analysis of activities carried out by the Group, Expenses are further categorised into life insurance and life investment

{expenses based on new business volumes {acquisition costs) and in-force volumes (maintenance and investment
|management costs).

Acquisition costs

Policy acquisition costs comprise the costs of acquiring new business, including commission, advertising, policy
issue and underwriting costs, agency expenses and other sales costs

Where the overall praduct profitability of new life insurance business written dusing the year is expected to support
{he recovery of acquisifion costs incurred in that year, these costs are effectively deferred as an element of life
insurance contract assets and amortised over the life of the palicles wriften. Unamortised acquisition costs are a
component of life insurance assets. Amartisation of acquisition costs is recognised in the consolidated income

statement as a component of net change in life insurance contract assefs at the same time as policy margins are
released

Commission that varies with and is directly related to securing new life invesiment contracls 's capitalised as a
deferred acquisifion cost asset along with an administration and marketing allowance. All other acquisition costs
are recognised as expenses in the consolidated income statement when incurred. The deferred acquisition cost
asset is subsequently amortised over the life of the contracts and is recognised In the consolidated income
statement as part of net change in life investment contract assets.

Matntenance cosls

Maintenance costs are the fixed and variable costs of administrating policies subsequent to sale. These include
general growth and development costs.
invastmeni management expenses

Investment management expenses are the fixed and variable cosis of managing life investment funds.

Maintenance and investrent management expenses are recagnised in the consolidated income statement onh an
accrual basis.

Opearating leasss

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operaling leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated Income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.




Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

7. Expenses (contlnued)

The following table shows a summary of the commission and management expense apportionment hetween life

insurance contracts and the Non Statutory Fund

Life Insurance contracts

Acqulsition costs
Commission expenses
Operating expenses

Maintenance costs
Commission expenses
Operating expenses

Life Investment contracts
Malintenance costs

Commissions

Other expanses
Investment management expenses

Non Statutory Fund
Commission expenses
Operating expenses

Total commission and operating expenses

Included within other operating expenses are the following:

Salaries and wages and other employee costs
Restructure costs

Remuneration of auditor {appointed auditor: PricewaterhouseCoopers)

Audit of statutory financial statements
Additional audit fees in relation to prior year
Audit of solvency return

Tax compliance services

Tax advisory services

Due diligence services!

Custodial contro| engagement

Other services?
Total remuneration of auditor

Directors’ fees

Other professional fees
Opevating lease costs’
Depreciation {note 15)

Amoitisation (note 16)

2018 2018
$'000 $'000
28,584 40,346
24,963 23,812
28,147 25,507

30,720 28,671
112,414 118,336
614 587
519 1,138
33 126

1,348 1,851
123 2,336
2,943 2,981
116,826 125,503
2019 2018
$°600 $:000
32,042 29,865
1,606 120
382 398

13 30

M 40

21 29

8 29

- 42

16 21

5 186

486 785
683 641
2,300 1,156
314 278
895 1,181
1,061 1,070

1 Due diligence services costs in relation to the issue of shares were deducted from share capital in the prior
financial year o the extent they were incremental costs directly atiributable {o the equity transaction In accordance

with NZ IAS 32. The comparative information has been restated.

2 Other services include saftware training for the current financial year. Robotic Process automation consulting and

workshop facilitation costs are included for the previous financial year,

3 Operating lease costs include remtal of commercial affice space and office equipment and the lease of motor

vehicles.

i
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 Juna 2019

8. Taxation

Accounting pollcles
Current and daferred Income lax

Income tax expense comprises current and defarred tex, calculated using the tax rale enacted or substantially enacted at balance date and any
adjustments to tax payable in reapect of prior years. Income tax expense is recognised in the consolidated income statement except when il
relates to items racognised directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive incomes, in which case the lax expense is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive incoma.

Income tax expense reflects lax imposad on hoth shareholders and policyholders. Tax on shareholders is imposed on cash flows (premiums

less claims, less expenses, plus shareholder investment income), Tax on policyholders is iImposed on investment income allocated to the
policyholders.

Defarred tax expense is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and ligbilitias in the financlal

statements and the amounts used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax asset 's recagnised only to the extent it is probable that it will be
utthsed,

Deferred tax assets are offset agalnst deferrad tax liabilities to the extent they reiate to income laxes which are lagally able to be offsel against
each other.

The tax axpense in the consolidaled income slatement is analysed as foliows:
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Profit before tax 31,021 24,292
Tax al the New Zealand income fax rale of 28% (2018 28%) 8,686 8,802
Tax effect of non-taxable income {1,188) (3,444)
Tax effect of non-deductibls expenses 5,391 6,736
Benafit of imputation credits received {116) {192)
Prior period adjustment 5 272
ncome lax expansa reported in the consolidaled Income statement 12,767 10,174
Gomprising.
Current tax 3,227 686
Defarred tax 9,540 9,478
12,767 10,174
Tax expense aitributed to policyholders 1,360 714
Tax expanse altributed to shareholdars 11,407 9,460

12,767 10,174

The taxation expanse relating lo components of other comprehensive Income is as follows

2049 2018
$'000 $'000
Defarred
Before tax tax After tax  Before tax Defame ik After tax
expense
expense
Fair value gains on revaluation of
land and building 3,393 {950) 2,443 3,521 {086) 2,535
3,393 {850) 2,443 3,521 (988) 2,535
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Income {ax assets
Income tax prepaid' 3,551 3,551
Cunrent tax asset 4 1,608
Tax benefit recognised on acqulred policies 58 &8
Total incoma lax assets 3,613 5,227

! The income tax prepald amount wilt be utilised to meet the Company's future shareholder incoma tax liabilitles once tax losses carried forward
have been exhausted. Tha Company cannot raquesi a refund for the amount and i will not be ulilised in the next financial year.

2019 2018
Current tax llabilittes £'000 $'000
Current tax liabilities (643) {20}
Total current tax liabilities {643) {20)

pwce
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financlal stataments
for the year ended 30 June 2019

8. Taxation {continued)
Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences altributable to:

Payables
and other
[ntangible  financial Unused tax
assets  [liabilities losses Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 2017 3,503 1,620 27,144 32,267
Movement through the conselidated income statement {89} {465) 375 {169}
Balance at 30 June 2018 3,414 1,165 27,619 32,098
Restatement due to adoption of NZ IFRS 9 and 16 - 58 - 58
Adjusted balance as al 30 June 2018 3,414 1,223 27,519 32,166
Movament through the consalldated income statement (723} 875 1,808 1,958
Balance at 30 June 2019 2,691 2,098 29,325 34,114
Deferred tax Habtllities
The balance comprises temporary differences atifibutable {o.
Life
Financial assets at  Property, insurance Deferred
fair value through  plant and contract  acquisition  Deferrad
profit or loss  equipment assets costs' income Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 2017 325 1,585 1,096 57,6563 2,607 63,266
Movement through the consalidated
income slatement 240 {162} {181) 1,570 1,843 8,310
Movement through other
comprehensive 'ncome - 986 - - - 986
Balance at 30 June 2018 565 2,408 815 65,223 4,450 73,562
Movameant through the consolidated
Income statement {104} (1,648) 258 8,893 4,156 11,555
Maovement through other
comprehansive income - 850 u - “ 950
Balance at 30 June 2019 461 1,711 1,173 74,1186 8,806 86,067
T Deferred acquisition costs are a component of life insurance contract assets,
Imputation credits
2019 2018
$'000 $000
8 2

Imputation credits available for uga In subsequent reporiing periods based on & tex rele of 28%

5!
pwc
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

9. Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial instilutions. The asseis are short term In nature and the
carrying value is approximately equat to thelr fair value.

Statement of cash flows
Tha following are the definitions of the terms used in the consolidated statement of cash flows:
(i} Operating activities Include all transactions and other events that are not investing or financing activities.
(I} Investing activities are those aclivities relating lo the acquisition, holding and disposal of proparty, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and investments.
Cash flows from the sale and purchase of financial assets in respect of investing activities have been reportaed on a net

basls as they predominantly relate to funds held for the benefit of policyholders or reflect the purchase and sale of
investments where turnover is quick, amounts are large and maturities are short.

(iiy Financing activitles are those activities relating to the changes in aquity and debt siructure of the Group.,

Cash and cash equlvalenis comprise; 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Bank balances 12,501 6,011

Total cash and cash equivalents 12,501 6,011

10. Restricted Cash

2019 2018

$'000 $000
Restricted cash 10,268 10,087
Tolal restricted cash 10,268 10,087

Restricted cash comprises $10,000,000, plus accrued interest at 1.9% p.a. afler fees, which is held in escrow to support
warranties and indemnities until 5 July 2019 In a trust account maintained by Russell McVeagh as part of a Subscription
Agreement with Guardians of New Zealand Superannualion as Manager and Administrator of the New Zealand
Superannuation Fund ("NZ Super”). This balance is therefore not availabie for general use by entilies within the Group. The
escrow amount was subsequently released in full on 8 July 2019 (refer to note 27).

11. Assets arising from relnsurance contracts

Accounting policy

Assels arising from reinsurance coniracts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amontised
icost less any provislon for Impalrment

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Life insurance contracts reinsurance assats
Balance at 1 July 17,795 18,489
Reinsurance claims made to reinsurers 63,290 59,323
Payments received from reinsurers {61,196} (60,017)
Balance at 30 June {expected to ba recovered within 12 months) 19,889 17,795

pwe
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

12. Financial instruments

Accounting Policies

Accounting poficy applicabla pricr to 1 July 2018
Basis of measurement and recognition

The Group classifies financial instruments into one of the following caiegorles: at falr value through profit of loss; held for
trading; loans and other receivables, financial liabilities al falr value through profit or loss, and financial liabilities at
amortised cost. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial Instruments were acquired. All assets
backing life iInsurance policies are designated at fair value through profit or Joss. Management determines the classiflcation
of Its financtal instruments at Initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at sach reporting date.

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise those that are either held for trading or which are
classified on initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as such if it is acquired
principally for the purpese of selling in the shori-term or If management designates it as such bacause aither

+ The classification eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis, or

* The assets and liabifities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are managed and their
performance Is evalualed on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or invesiment sirategy.

Some of these calegorles require measurement al fair value. Fair value represants the price that would be received to sell
an asset or transfer a ligbility in an arderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. Where available,
quoted market prices are used as a measure of fair value. Where quoted values do not exist, farr values are estimated
using present values or other market accepted valuation techniques, using methods and assumptions that are based on
market condltions and risks existing at balance date.

Financial instruments classified as at fair value through profil or loss are presented in the statement of consolidaled
financla! position at their fair value. For all other financial instruments carrying value approximates fair value.

Held for trading
Forward currency contracts are used to reduce lhe Group's exposure to currency movements affecting the market value of
the Group’s investments denominaled In foreign currencies.

Derivative financlal instruments are recorded at fair value through profit or loss, based on markel accepted valuation
technlques using cbservable market inputs. Subsequent gains and losses arising from the fair value remeasurement of
derivative financlal instruments are recognised immediately in investment Income in the consolidated income statement.

IDenvatives used by the Group inchide Interest rate swaps, forward currency contracls and foreign currency swaps.

Purchases and sales of financial instruments are recognised on trade date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell. For financial assels not carried al fair value through profit or loss, assets are initially recognised at fair
Fvalue plus transaclion costs,

Financial assels are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired ar have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership.

Financial liabiiities at fair value through profit or loss

The carrying value of life investmenl contract (iabilities reasonably approximates their fair value. Refer to nole 19 for
furlher detals on the basis of the valuation

Offselling financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group offsels financial assets and financial liabilitles and reports the net balance in the consclidated statement of
financial position where there s a legally enforceable right of set off, and there is the intention {o settle on 2 nel basis or to
realisa the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

pwe
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

12. Financial instruments (continued)

Accounfing policy applicable from 1 July 2018

{NZ IFRS 9 containg a new classification and measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business madel in
which the assets are managed and the contractuat terms of the cash flows

{h Classificalion
From 1 July 2018, the Group classifies its financial assels into the following measurement categories;
- thosa to be measured at amorised cost;

- those to be measured subsequently at fair valus, either through other comprehensive incame (FVOCI) or through profit
or loss (FVPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except If in the perled the Group changes its
business model for managing those financial assets. Subsequent measuremant of the Group's financlal assels depends
on the Group's business model for managng the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

(i) Recognition and deracognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on trade-dale, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assels are derecognised when the righls to receive cash flows from the financial

assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has ransferred substantially ali the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(i) Measurement
Amortised Cost

A financial assef is measured at amortised cost if it meels both of the following conditlons and is not designated as being
measured at FVPL;

- the asset is held within a business modal whose objective Is to hold assets to collect coniractual cash flows; and

- the conlraciual lerms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and Interest an the principal amount outstanding.

FVPL

Tha Group classifles the following financlal assets at FVPL:

- debt investments thal do not qualify for measurement at elther amortised cost or FVOC!;

- equity investments that are held for trading; and

- equity investmenis for which the Group has not elected to recognise fair value gains or losses through OCI.

Business modal assessment

The Group must make an assessmenl of lhe objeclive of lhe business madel in which a financial asset is held at a portlolio
level as this best reflects the way ihe business is managed. The informalion considerad includes:

- the stated policies and oblectives for the pertfolic and operation of those policles In practice; and

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reporied to the Group's management.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely paymenls of principal and Interest

{For the purpose of this assessment, *principal’ Is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on Initial recognition.
'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular penod of time, for other basis lending risks and costs and for a profit margin.

pwe
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

12. Financial instruments (continued)

n assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that
could change the liming or amount of coniractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this

assessment, the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contraclual coupon rate, including variable rate fealures;

- prepayment and exlension fealures; and

- terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Recagnition of gamns or losses
FVPL

A gain or joss on a dabt instrument that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or Joss and presented net

within investment income/(losses) in the periad In which it arises

Amortised Cost

Inferest Income from these financlal assets Is included in Inlerest Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition Is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in investment income/(losses) together
with forslgn exchange gains or losses. impairment losses are presented as a separate line itemn in the statement of profit or

loss.

Ftnancial instruments by categary

Financlal assets

At 30 June 2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricled cash

Assels arising from reinsurance contracts
Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments (held for trading)
Loans and other receivaebles

At 30 June 2018

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Assets arising from relnsurance contracts

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and other receivables

Financial llabilities

At 30 June 2019
Payables and other financial liabiilties

Derivative financtal instruments {held for trading)
Life Investment Contract Liabllities

At 30 June 2018

Payables and cother financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (held for trading)
Life Investment Contraci Liabilities

Falr value through profit Amortised
orloss Cost Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
- 12,501 12,501
" 10,268 10,268
- 19,889 19,889
302,475 - 302,475
897 - 897
- 7,452 7,452
303,372 50,110 353,482
Loans and
Assets at fair value other
through profit or loss recelvables Total
- 6,011 6,011
- 10,087 10,087
- 17,795 17,795
315,885 - 315,885
- 14,141 14,141
315,885 48,034 363,919
{ lahilities at
Liabllities at fair value  amortised
through profit or loss cost Tatal
$'000 $'060 $'000
- 49,987 49,987
568 - 568
122,956 - 122,956
123,524 49,987 173,611
Liabllities at falr value Liabilities at
through prafit orloss and  amortised
held for trading cost Total
- 47,521 47 521
756 - 756
142,082 - 142,082
142,838 47,521 190,359

i
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Fldelity Life Assurance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

12, Financial Instruments {continued)

Falr values of financial instruments

The following table shows the Group's financlal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss calegorised by falr

value measurement hierarchy levels. The levels are as follows:

Level 1. Falr values are determined using quoled market prices where an active market exists

Level 2; Whera quoted market prices are not available or markets are considered inactive, falr values have been estimated
using present value or other techniques based on market conditions existing at balance date. The valuation techriques

rely on market observable inputs

Level 3: Fair values are estimated using Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

At 30 June 2019

Assets

Financial asseis al fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities - Unifised funds

Equity securities - Unitised funds

Finangial assels at fair vatue through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Farward currency cantracts
Total derivative financial instruments

Total financial assets at fair value

Liabilities

Derivative financlal instruments
Interest rate swaps

Life Invesiment Contract Liahilities
Total financlal liabllitles at fair value

At 30 Juns 2018

Assets

Flnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities - Unitised funds

Equity securitles - Unitllsed funds

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Liabillties

Derivative financial instruments
Forward currency coniracls

Life invesiment Conlract Liabilitles
Total financial liabilities at fair valua

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives at 30 Juna 2019 were:
« forward currency contracts $56,665,423 (2018: $65,412,164)

¢ interest rate swaps $75,000,000 (2018: nil)

Total fair

Level 2 Level 3 value
$'000 $'000 $'000
230,013 - 230,013
72,462 - 72,462
302,475 . 302,475
897 . 897

897 B 897
303,372 - 303,372
568 - 568

- 122,956 122,956

568 122,956 123,524
260,086 260,086
55,799 - 5_5 799
315,885 - 315885
756 . 756
- 142,082 142,082
756 142,082 142,838
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Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

12. Financlal Instruments (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments {continued}

The following table shows movements in the falr value of financial instruments categorised as level 3:

Balance
at the
beginning  Net fair Balance at
of the value Purchases/ Withdrawals/ the end of
year gains deposits disposals the year
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
2019
Liabtlities classified as level 3
Life investment contract liabilitles 142,082 4,852 4,61 {28,579) 122,956
2018
Liahililes classified as level 3
Life investment contract llabilities 143,359 11,114 5428 (17,819) 142,082

13. Loans and other receivables

Accounting policy

|Loans and other recsivables are recognised inilially at fair value plus iransaclion costs and subsequently measured at
amorlised cost less any provision for impairment.

Impairment

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018
A provision for impairment is established when there is evidence that the Group will not be able 1o collect all amounts due.
When a receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the provislon.

Accounting policy applicable from 1 July 2018

INZ IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss' model In NZ EAS 39 with a forward-looking 'expected credit loss' (ECL') madel.

'The Group recognises a |oss allowance for the ECLs on financial assels measured at amortised cost subject to NZ IFRS 9
impalrments, baing loan receivables, cash, cash equivalents and restricled cash.

Majority of the Group's financial assets represent righte and obligations arlsing under insurance contracls as defined in NZ
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts which are out of scope and therefare not subject lo N2 IFRS 9 impairment model.

The Group applies a three stage approach lo measuring ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. Asseis
migrate through the following three stages on their change in credit quality since Initial recagnition:

i) Stage 1: 12-month ECL
[For exposuras where there has not been a significant Increase in credit risk since initial recognition and which ware not

credil impatred upon ongination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of defaull events occuriing
within the next 12 months is recognised.

if) Stage 2. Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credil risk since initial recognition but that are not credit
impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remalning lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised. The management
praclice is to consider three elements in assessing whether there have been a significant increase in credit risk - a
quantitative element, quaiilative element and the 30 day rebultable presumption, together with other information.

lil) Stage 3. Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detiimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset have occurred, For financial assels that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is
racagn'sed and interest revenue is caculated by applying the effectiva interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision)
rather than to the gross carrying amount.

The loss allowances which are measured as 12-month ECLs are

- debt securitias that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporling date; and

-~ other debt securities and bank balances for which the credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected [ife of
the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since inilial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade recelvables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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13. Loans and other recelivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probabﬁly of default upon initial recognition of an asset and whelher there has been a significant
increase in cradit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each repaorting period.

In assessing whether there has bean a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default oceurring
on the asset as at the reporling date with the risk of default as at the dale of initia! recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supporiable forward-looking information. The following indicators are incorporated:
- Internal credit rating;

actual or expected significant adverse changes in financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s abilily to meet its obligations;
- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation;

- significant changes In the expecled performance and behaviour of the borrower, incluging changes In the payment status
of borrowers;

IMacroeconomic information (such as markel interest rates and unemployrnent rates) is incorporated as part of the internal
rating model.

The Group assumes that the credit risk of a financial assel has increased significantly if i is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financlal asset 1o he In default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligallons to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group lo actions such as
reafising the security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or mare past due.

The Graup considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understoad definition of "Invesimeni grade'. The Group considers this to be BBB- or higher per rating agency.
12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs thal result from defauil evenls lhat are possible within the 12 months after the
reporling date (or a shorier period if the expecled life of the Instrument is less than 12 months).

I all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating £CLs Is the maximum contractual perlod over which the
|Group Is exposed to credit risk

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimale of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the presen! value of all cash

Measurement of ECL
|shorlfalls.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is writlen off {either partially or In full) to the extent there is no realistic
Iprospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or

sources of income thal could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off,

Note 2019 2018
$'000 $000

Mortgages and loans
Mortgage and loan balances 14 3,119 8,305
Less provision for Impalrment 14 {1,249) {200}
Loan receivables net of expected credit losses 1,870 8,105
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments 2,892 3991
Sundry receivables 244 774
QOutslanding premiums 5,338 5262
Tolal Trade and Other receivables 8,474 10027
Total loans and other receivables 10,344 18,132
Due:
Within 12 months 8,644 14,609
Later than 12 months 1,700 3,523

10,344 18,132
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14, Impairment on financial assets

The following table shows the loan receivables subject to the expected credit loss model:

Gross carrylng amount of mortgages and loans
Loan loss allowance
Loan receivables net of expected credit lossos

Balance at énd of the period

{b) Mortgages and loans by expected credit loss allowance

Opening loss allowance as at 1 July 2018 (restated for NZ IFRS 9}

Other char

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
3,119 8,305
(1,249) {200)
1,870 8,105
{a) Gross carnrying amounts of martgages and loans as at 30 June 2019 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Collective Collective  ndividually
assessed  assessed assessed
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,310 - 1,800 3,119
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Individually
Collective  Collactive assessed
assessed  assessed provisions
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
74 33 202 309
Individual financial assets transferred toXfrom) stage 3 individually assessed provisions - - 1,011 1,011
{a8) {33) - {7l
36 - 1,213 1,249

Closing loas allowance as at 30 June 2019

While cash and cash equivalents and Testricted cash are also subject to the Impairment requirements of NZ IFRS 9, the identified impairment

loss was immaterial.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Accounting Policies
Froperty, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are carried at fair value based on an annual valvation by an external independent valuer, less any
subsequent depreciation for buildings.

All other property, plant and equipment Is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. The cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation

|Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate an assef's cost or revalued amount, nat of any residual
value, over the asset's estimated useful life. The rates are as follows

Property building component 50 years
Building fit-out 8 years
Leasshold improvements 8 years
Plant and equipment 3-5 years
Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in ¢circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may hot be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell, and
value in use.

Property, plant and equipment can be analysed as follows:

Owner-
occupied
property Building fit-out
measured at and Plant and
fair value improvements aquipment Total
$'000 $°000 $'000 $°'000

At 1 July 2017
Cost or fair value 23,000 1,154 5,587 28,741
Accumulated depreciation - {1,030) {4,432) {5,462)
Net book amount 23,000 124 1,155 24,279
Year ended 30 June 2018
Opening net bock amount 23,000 124 1,155 24,279
Additions - 20 368 388
Revaluation 3,521 - - 3,521
Depraciation B21) (35) {525) (1,181)
Disposals - - (120) {120}
Closing net book amount 25,900 109 878 26,887
At 1 July 2018
Cost or fair value 26,900 1,174 5514 32,588
Accumulated depreciation - (1,065) (4,636) (5,701)
Net book amount 25,800 109 878 26,887
Year ended 30 June 2019
Opening net book amount 25,900 109 878 26,887
Addltions 174 96 464 734
Revaluation 3,393 - - 3,393
Depraciation {467) (34) {394) (895)
Disposals - - {45) {45)
Closing net book amount 29,000 171 203 30,074
At 30 June 2019
Cost or fair value 29,000 1,270 5,933 36,203
Accumulated depreciation - (1,099) {5,030} {6,129)
Net baok amount T 29,000 171 903

30,074 ZE
Page
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18. Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Revaluatlon of property

Tha ownar-occupied property is a commercial office building located in Auckland, The valuation of the property is measured at
fair value at each reporting date. The methodology used to value the property includes significant unobservable inputs {level
3 of the fair value hierarchy).

The property was valued on 3Q June 2019 at $29,000,000 (2018, $25,9G0,000), by P R Amesbury (ANZIV, SPINZ) an
independent registered valuer in the firm of Barratt-Boyes Jefferies Lawton L'mited. The open market value was used as the
basis for the valuation.

Primary assumptions used in valuing the property

2019 2018
Capitalisation rate! 4.70% 5.33%
Discount rate’ 5.00% 6.00%

' The fair value of the properly would increase if the capitalisation rate or the discount rate were to decrease and vice-versa,

Revalued property historic cost
If the property was stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows.

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
Cost 18,186 18,013
Accumulated depreciation (3,537) (3,122)
Net book amount 14,649 14,891

16. Intangible assets

Accounting Policies
Software
Acquired software licences are capitallsed on the basis that they are costs incurred to acquire and use specific software

Internally devsloped software

Costs associated with developing identifiable and unique software controlled by the Group, inciuding empioyee and contractor
costs, are capitalised and treated as intangible assets when the praducts will generata probable future economic benefits.
Amortisation commences once the software is avallable for use.

Software undsr development
Costs that are directly associated with the development of soffware are recognised as intangible assets where the following
criteria are met:

It is technlcally feasible to complete the software so that It will be available far use, there is an ability to use the software; it can
be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits; the expenditure attributable to the
software during its development can be refiably measured.

Soflware development costs that meat the above criteria are capitalised. Other development expenditure that does not meet
the above criteria |s recognised as an expense as Incurred.

Software costs are amortised over the usefu| life of 3 to 10 years on a straight-line basis.

Acquired value of in-force businaess {AVIF}

The present value of future profits on a portfolio of life insurance and life investment contracts acquired as part of a business
combination is recognised as an asset, AVIF.

AVIF costs are amortised over the useful life of the related contracts. The rate of amortisation is determined by considering
the profit of the additional vatue of the in-force business acquired and the expected depletion in its value.

Impairment

Intangible assets are reviewed for impaivment annually to identify events or changes in circumstances that Indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, If an asset's carrying amount s greater than Its estimated recoverable amount, the
carrying amount is written down to Its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less
costs to sell and the assel's value in use. Any impairment loss is recognised Immediately in the consolidated income
statement.
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16. Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets can be analysed as follows:

Internally
developed Software under
Software  software development AVIF Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

At July 2017
Cost 2,064 14,887 8,261 6,054 31,266
Accumulated amortisation {1,999) {11,950) {7,422) {6,054) (27,425)
Net book amount 65 2,937 839 - 3,841
Year ended 30 June 2018
Opening net book amount @5 2,937 839 3,841
Additions 32 - 389 - 421
Transfer infout 24 867 (891) - -
Amortisation (61) (1,009) - - (1,070}
Other movements - - (143) - {143)
Closing net book amount 60 2,795 194 - 3,049
At 30 June 2018
Cost 2,119 15,754 7,616 - 25,489
Accumulated amort'sation/impaimment (2,069) (12,959) {7,422) “ (22,440)
Net baok amount 60 2,785 194 - 3.049
Year ended 30 June 2019
Opening net book amount 60 2,795 194 - 3,049
Additions - - 942 “ 942
Transfer infout - 1,022 (1,022} - -
Amortisation {30} {1,021) . - (1,051)
Other movements - - (105) - (105)
Closing net book amount 30 2,796 9 - 2,835
At 30 June 2019
Cost 2,119 16,776 7,536 - 26,431
Accumulated amortisation/impairment (2,089) {13,980) {7,527} - (23,598)
Net book amount 30 2,796 9 - 2,835
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17, Payables and other financial liabilities

Accounting Policles

Payables

Payables are liabllities for goods and services provided to the Group which are unpaid at reporting date. The carrying
value of payables is considered to approximate fair value as amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within a
month of recogniticn.

Refer {o the accounting policy on Revenue {note 5), and Expenses {(note 7) for further details.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that
canh be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

2019 2018

$'000 $000
Creditors and accruals 6,102 5,673
Claims notified 18,171 15,822
Income in advance 624 1,551
Reinsurance liabllities 25,714 26,026
Employee entitlements 4,933 1,889
Total payables and other financial liabilities 55,544 50,961
Due:
Within 12 months 52,044 47,722
Later than 12 months 3,500 3,239

56,544 50,961

18. Life insurance contract liabilities and assets

Accounting Policies

Life insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk, Contracts that contain a
discretionary participation feature are also classified as fife insurance contracts. A participating contract is eligible for a
share of the value of future planned shareholder profit margins and an allowance for future supportable bonuses.

The methodology used to determine the value of life insurance contract labilities and assets is referred to as Margin on
Services (‘MoS"), as set out in New Zealand Soclety of Actuaries Professional Standard No 20: Determination of Life
Insurance Policyholder Liabilities ('PS20').

MoS is designed to recognise profits on life insurance policles as services are provided to policyholders and Income is
received. Under MoS, the planned profit margins are deferred and amortised over the life of the contract, whereas
losses are recognised immediately.

Life insurance contract assets and liabilities are generally determined as the present value of all future expected
payments, expenses, taxes and profit margins, reduced by the present value of all fuiure expected premiums.
The movement in life insurance contract liabilities and assets is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Bl
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18. Life insurance contract liabilities and assets (Continued)

Movement In life insurance contract liabilitles / (assels)

Opening balance at 1 July

Premlums received

Llabilities released for payments on death_surrender and
other terminatians in the year

Commission and other expenses

Other movements

Reclassification - Family Income Benefits annuities
Closing balance at 30 June

Life iInsurance contract Nabllities ceded under reinsurance
Opening balance at 1 July

Movement in consolidated income statement

Closing balance at 30 June

Net of relnsurance life insurance contract llabilities / (assets)

Due:
Within 12 months
Lalar than 12 months

Life Insurance contract assets contain the foliowing components*
Future policy benefits

Fulure expenses

Reinsurance policy liability

Planned margins of revenues over expenses

Future revenues

Life insurance contracts with a discretionary parliclpation
feature that hava a guaranteed alermant

* The 2018 figures have been restated to reflect a revised view of projected cashflows.

19, Financial liabifities (life investrent contract liabilities)

2018 2018
$'000 $000
{188,226) (166.479)
269,257 250,123
(125,715) {107 823)
(118,965) {116 686)
{68,648) (53,869)
- (2.492)
{220,295) (188,226)
31,628 34,886
9,820 (3,258)
41,457 31,628
{178,838) {156 508)
1,083 1,200
{179,891) (157,788)
{178,838) (156,598)
1,668,276 1,218,180
801,000 484,265
41,457 31,628
268,664 234,978
(2,658,224)  (2,125,649)
{178,838) (156,598)
35,978 38,176

Accounting Policies

Life invasimen! contracts are those conlracts with no significant insurance risk, bui which give rise to a financial liability.

Life investment contracts Issued by the Group are unit-linked and are measured at fair value. The fair value of a unit-linked
conlract is determined by using the current unit values that reflect the falr valies of the financlal assets backing the contract,

muiiiplied by the number of units atiributed to the contract halder.

Movement In life investment contract liabilities
Opening balance at1 July

Contributions received

Faes deducted from account balances
Liabilities released for payments on death,
surrender and other terminations 'n the year
Investment retfurn credited {o policyholders
Other movements

Closing balance at 30 June

Due:
Within 12 months
Later than 12 months

Life invastment contracts with a guaranteed element

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
142,082 143,359
4,837 5718
(236) {290)
{28,579) (17.818)
5,699 11,831
(847} (717)
122,966 142,082
37,308 49,173
85,648 92,908
122,956 142,082
09,704 107,391
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20, Deferrad income

2018 2018
$000 $000
3,417 4,100

Opening balance at 1 July
Amortisation (683) (683)
Closing balance at 30 June 2,734 3,417

The deferred income arose from reinsurance treaties entered into during the 2014 financial year. This deferred income s being
amortised over 10 years

21. Share capital and dividends

Accounting policies

Shara capifal

The Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equily as a deducton, nel of tax,
|from the proceeds.

Dividends
Ordinary dividends are recognised as a movemeni In equity in the year within which they are paid.
Where a dividend is declared alter balance date, bt prior to the issue of the financial statements, disclosure of the declaration

fis made but no liability Is recognised for the amount

Share capital
2018 2018 2019 2018
Shares Shares $'000 $'000
Share capital at the beginning of the year 2,081,440 1,439,267 81,586 14,123
Issued for cash - 652,173 - 75,000
Less: Transaction costs arising on share Issues - - - (7,537)
Closing balance 2,091,440 2,091,440 81,586 81586

All shares are fully paid and have no par value. All ardinary shares rank equally and shareholders are enlitled o recelve ane
vote per share.

Dividends paid
2019 2018 2019 2018
Per share Per share $'000 $'000
Ordinary shares
Spegial dividend - 3.00 - 1,722
Final dividend 2.00 - 4,183 -
2.00 3.00 4,183 1,722

Total dividend pald
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22. Capital management

The abjectives of the Group with regard 1o capital management are to:

(i) Maintain a level of target surplus which creates a buffer over minimum regulatory capital while still allowing for efficlent use

of capltal;

{i) Maintain a strong capital base {o cover the inherent risks of the business; and
(lif) Support the fulure development and growth of the business to maximise shareholder value.

The Board has the ultimate respongibility for managing capital and compliance with the Solvency Standard for Life Insurance
Business 2014 Issued by RBNZ, The Board approves the capital policy and minimum capital levals and limlts. Minimum capital
levels are set based on maintalning 4 targe! surplus In excess of solvency margin requirements under the Solvency Slandard.
The Company has twe [ife funds, the Statutory Fund and the Non Statutory Fund. Under Its llcence, It is a requirement thal
actual solvency capital must at all imes excead the higher of $5 million ar the minimum solvency capltal. The solvency margin

n each life fund must also be at least $0.

During (he years ended 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Company complled with all capital licensing requirements.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for maintalning the oplimal capital structure, The Audit and Risk Commilltee oversees the
capital computations and advises the Board on dividend payments and share issues. In addltion, the Company manages its
required level of capital through analysis and oplimisation of the Company's product and assat mix, reinsurance programme,

[nsurance risk exposure and investment strategy.

The Appointed Acluary is satisfied thal appropriate aclions with n the Board's cantrol are sufficient to ensure a solvency margin
is maintained at all fimes over the next four years, without ralsing any exira capital.

The solvency position of the Company Is as follows;

2019 2018
Non-Statutory Non-Statutory

Statutory Fund Fund Total Statutory Fund Fund Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Actual solvency caplital 246,419 52,445 298,864 225,848 63,118 278,966

Minimum solvency capitat 229,213 18924 248137 196,177 6,804 203,071

Solvency margin 17,206 33,621 50,727 29,671 46,224 76,895
Solvency ratio 108% 277% 120% 115% 771% 137%
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23. Disaggregated information

NZ IFRS 4 requires disclosure of d'saggregaled Information in respect of amounts relating to Investment linked business and
nan-investment linked business for certain categories as shown below. Non-investment linked business includes shareholders'

funds held within he Statutory Fund.
Disaggregated Information far the Company's Slatutory Fund is presented below:

Non-

Investment  Investment

linked linked

2019 $'000 $'000
{nvestment assets 112,462 147,465
Other assels 10,484 87,683

Pollcy liabilities 122,956 {178,838)
Liabillties other than policy liabilitles - 135,087
Shareholders’ retained earnings - 278,788
Insurance premium revenue and contributions recelved 4,802 269,493
Investment income 8,300 8,136
Claims expense and Investment contracts payments 23,678 126,716
Other operating expenses 1,348 112,414
Investment ravenuas paid or allocated to policyholders 5,699 -
Profit before tax 1411 30,917
{Loss) / profit after tax (249) 19,199

2018

Investment assets 131,880 134,872
Other assets 10,201 89,005

Policy liahilities 142,082 (156,598)
Liabfiities other than policy fiabilities . 122,472
Shareholders’ retained earnings - 257,405
Insurance premium revenue and contributions received 5428 259,413
Investment iIncome 13,074 6,568
Claims expense and investment contracls paymenis 17,818 107,823
Other operating expenses 1,851 118,336
Investment revenues pald or allocated to polleyholders 11,831 -
Prafit before tax 15612 22 538
Profit after tax 798 13,516
Capial receipis / {distributions) - 26,500

Total
Statutory
Fund
$'000

259,927
98,077
(56,882)
136,087
278,798
274,095
14,436
154,294
113,760
5,699
32,029
18,950

266,752
99,206
(14,516)
122,472
257,405
264,841
19,642
125,642
120,187
11,831
24,051
14,314
28,500
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24, Risk Management

Risk management framework
The Board has responsibllity for the establishmenl and oversight of the Group's risk framewori. I &iso has the responsibifity for
approving the risk appellte of the Group and risk related policies,

While the Boerd is ullimately responsible for risk management, specific responajbility for the montioring and evalualion of the
ffectl of rlsk « I is delegated lo the Audlt and Risk Commitlae who énswe thal managemeant have identifled, measured
and managed the Group's risks In accordance with the Group's palicias and risk objectivas.

The Group has & formattsed risk managament programma which is supporiad by slx key companents:

I, The risk management pollcy purpose ia to communicate why fisk managamani 1s Impantant ta the Group and describe lhe
approach 1o managing risk, The policy statas the objectives of the risk management lramework and strategy: and Idenfifies who
Is responsible for the varicus risk management activities, Including oversighl, implementallon and assessment of effecliveness,
monilorng and reporiing,

Wi.  The risk management framework datails how the Group ansures that effective risk managamean Is real and reflecled in the
aperalional acliviies of the Group, The risk managemenl framework considers riska al a sirateglc and operational level.

iil.  Tha risk and compliance sicatagy forms part of the annual siralagic snd business planning decuments, identifying the key risk
management initialives that nead lo ba planned and budgsled for,

Iv.  The corporate rizk registar allows the Audit and Risk Commillee and Risk Management Commiltee to crillcally evaluate If the
riak manegemeni process is effeclively ienlifying and addressing exposures. The risk regisier continuously evolves as risks
are identified, monitorad and trealed

v.  Therlsk appetis statement is reviewed annually by the Board. Tha risk appetita stalement |3 used as & gulda to the level of sk
he Group Is prepared o accept.

vi.  Anintemal audit function whose purposs is to provide Independent and objective assurance on the adequacy and effecliveness
of conirols sat up by managamant.

The risk management programme of work Is regulany reviewed to ensura it conlinuas to effeclively manage the Group's riaks,

An Assel and Liability Commitlee {ALCO') was sel up in FY18. The ALCO, which reports to and I8 direclly accountable o the Board of

Directors, comprises the Chlef Execulive Officer, the Chlel Financlal Cfficer, the Appointed Actuery, the Chief Risk Officer, one [lirector
and an Independent actuarial advi

Fldelity Life’s buslness linas expose the Company lo balance sheet and profit or logs risk jatad with ts In financial
inslruments and other assels, as well a3 the movement in the nel present value of fulure projecled income and llabllity cash flows. The
purpose of ALCQ I8 to construcl portiollos of finranicial essels that madmise expecied retums subject to the risk appelite and constraints
esiablished by the Fldefity Life Board. ALCO |s empowered 1o invesiigate any sources of actual or polenllal change in those values and
the key measures of financial cendliion. including balance sheet siranglh and liquidity. regulatory solvancy leves, profitability, changes in
the values of differen! ciasses of liability, and the performance of invesimenl assets, ALCO i3 responsible for reviewing invesiment policy
and submitting any recommendations for change to the Board for approval, including llability hedging and cumency hedging sirategles,

The Group's actlvitles axpose it to markel risk, insurance risk, liquidity risk and cradit risk:

A. Market risk
Markel risk ks the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial Instrument vall fluctuale because of changes In markel prices,
Market risk compyises lhree types of risk. curency risk, price sk and Interest rate rlak

Far ach of the mejor components of market rfak, the Graup has put in place procedures to set oul haw each risk should be managad and
monitared, and the approach lo seiting an appropiiale risk sppetite. The managemenl of marikel sk Is undertaken by ALCO. ALCO
oversees ihe seleclion of wholesale managers tuction of wholesale mandates and asset allocation within the parmitiad guidellnes
of the Statement of Investment Palicy and Objectives ("SIPO').
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24. Risk Management (continued)

{l) Currency risk

Gurrancy risk is tha risk that the falr value orf fulure cash flows of a financlal ‘nstrument wil' fluctuste because of changes in forelgn
currency rales,

Forelgn currency rigk arises as e Group has Invested in International shares and Inlemational bonds which are denominated in forelgn
currencles. As at 30 June 2016 forelgn currency denominaied assets amountad to 11.2% (2018 12.5%) of tolel assets. The market
value of these assels is therafore affacted by movamenta In lhe New Zaaland dolfar retalive ta the currency in which the assel ia
denominated,

The Group uses forelgn currency forward canlracts to miligate its exposura 16 currency risk from foreign denominaled assels,

{i) Price risk

Price risk [s the sisk thal the fair value of fuiure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due lo changes in market prices (other
than thosa arlsing from interest rate risk or cumrency risk) whelher those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financiel
instrumnent ar its lasuer. or by laclors affecting all simllar financial instruments iraded in the market.

‘Tha risk is managed by ensuring a diverse range of invesiments, limits an counterparty exposura and resirictions on types of instruments,

Most price righ 1s bome by polleyholders of lils invesiment conlracts who have selected the Investment portfollo thet invests in a particular
mix of assels, However, tha Group derives fes income based on the value of the underlying funds; hence revenues are sensitive 1o
changes in market velue. For assets which are not contractuelly linked to policy lisbilities, the Group is exposed 1o equity price risk.

{1} Intarest rale risk

Interast rate risk is the risk tha the (alr value of future cash flows or a {inancial insirument will fluciuate because of changes in markel
interes| rales. The Qroup's exposwie to the sk of changas In market Intarest rates relates primarly lo:

Fair value interest rate risk
Fair value Interest rata risk arises from the potential for a changie in Intesesi rales to causa a flucluation in tha fair vaiue of financla
instruments and life insurence contract liabilittes and assels.

Cosh flow Interes! rale risk
Cash Mlow Interest rate risk 's the potenlial for a change in Interes! rales lo change Interast axpense and Interest Income in fulure perlods,

Morigages and policy loans held by the Group are aiso subject to cash flow nterest rate risk.

The Group manages Iis [nlerest rale riek by using interest rate swaps. Interest rale swaps are derivative insiruments that the Group
enters inlo with New Zegland regl i banks 1o ive floating rata Interast (90 day bank b#s) in exchange for paying a fixed rate of

inlerest based on a margln over government bonds, Tha inlemlnn of entering Inte interest rate swap agreemants 's lo reduce the profit
and loss volatility associated with changes in the discount rate.
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24, Risk Management {continuad)
Sensltivity to market risk

Tha following table shows the change In profil afler (ax and the effect on equity If there was a change In market risk assumptions with all
ather variables assumed unchanged:

Market riska
Currency rates
Equity prices

Interest rates

2018 2018
$'000 000
impact on poat- Impact on equity  Impact on post- tmpact on
tax profit tax profit squilty

Increass by 10% 123 12 20 20
Decreass by 10% {100} {100} (17 [435]
Incrazsa by $0% 429 428 1,182 1,182
Decrense by 10% {429) (429} {1,182) (1,182}
increasa by 1% 3,974 3,074 {38) {36)
Cecrease by 1% (4,316) 14,318} 36 K]

This table relers cnly lo the effect on Ananclel insluments and does not Includa the impaci on Ife Insurence contract liabdities and assela.

B. Insurance Risk

Insurance risk Is risk, olher than financial fisk, that is transferred from the helder of an insurance contracl to the insurar

The Group's abjeclivas in managing risks arising (rom K3 Insurance business are:

+To ensure that an appropriale talum on capital is madea in relum for accepiing Insurance fisk,
« To ensure thal internal conlrols are In place within the business 1o mitigate underwriting nsk,
* To ensure that internal and axtemnal solvency and capilal requiraments are met.

* To use reinsurence as a

it of it

& risk manag

| slrategy

Conltrols Implemented Lo manage insurance fisk include:

» Premium retes are set besed on the expacled incidenca of claims, costs of running the insurance pool (Induding commission 10 sales
Intermedlanias) and a contingancy margin to cover tha varability risk and cost of capital that provide solvency support for The insurance

pool,

« Underwiillng decisions are made in accordance with the procedures detalled in the Group's undenwriting manual,

= Claim management procedures are In place Lo asalst in (he (imely and comect payment of claims in accordance wilh policy

conditions

+ Relnsurance Ihat caps the telal amounl payable on each claim to a predefined amaunt of risk is used o conlral the exposurs of the
Group to variation In the incidences of claims and concentration of risk, The Group holds a catastrophe relnsurance lreaty to limit large
lossas arising from concentralions of risk due W geographical exposure ar single events. The Group also halds 8 pandemic
reinsurance ireaty lo limll the net exposures lo pandemic events. The Group acllvely manages Iis sxposure under ils retention
agreements with Iis reinsurers, Levels of relsined risk ara increasad or decreased i raflact changes in the Gruup's retention risk

profile,

Terms and conditlons of Insurance contracts

The nalure of the terms of Insurance conlracis writlen is such thal cerlain vanables can be idenlified on which relaled cast flow payments
depend, The tabe befow provides an ovendew of thase.

timing and uncertainty of
future cash flows

|
Key variables that affect the

- Martalily
- Morbidity
Discontinuance rales

|Nature of campensation for
Type of contract Detalf of ct terms and conditions clalms
Non-pariicipating Ife [Benefils paid on death, Hl heatih, disability or |Banefils, defined by the lite
]Insursnce contracls  |malurity that are fixed and guarantlead and nol [Insurance contract, are
wiih fixed and al the discralion of the Insurer, Premiums may |determined by the coniract and
[+l eed lesms be guarantead through the life of the contracl, |are nol diraclly affacied by the
gueranlesd for a specific term or variable at  |performance of underdying
the insurar’s discretlon. assets or the performance of
contracts a3 a whole.
ifa insurance These policles include & clearly defined Initiel |Benefis arsing from the
racis with guarenieed sum assured which is payable on  |discrallonary participation
kdimczetionary 'desih. The gusrantead amaunt i3 & multiple of [festure are based on the
|natticlpating benefits {tha amount thai 's increased hroughoul the  [performance of & specified poof
duration of the policy by the addition of regular |of contracts or & speciiled type of|
bonuses annually which once edded srenot  [contract,
removed, Regular bonuses are added
|retrospectively.
Lifa annuity contracts | These policies provide regular payments 1o the | The amouni of ihe payment is
lite assured, sel al Incaption of the policy,
L.

Mortality
- Morbidity
~Market risk
- Discantinuance rales
- Market refumna on
underlying assals

« Longevity
= Market ralums an

underlying assets N i
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24, Risk Management {continued}
Sansitivity analysls

The anatysis assumes that the value of liabilities will nct be affected by changes in demographic assumptions,

The following lable shows the changas in Ihe valua of profit {posi-lax) at 30 June If actuariel assumplions change es fallows:

2019 2018
impact on post- Impact on post-
tax profit fax profit
$'000 §a00
Discaount rate Increasa by 0.25% {1,212 {544}
Cacraase by 0.26% 1,238 543
Morliafily { morblcily Increasa by 10% . {32}
Dacrease by 10% {15} 5
Disconlinuance Increass by 10% 7 82
Dacrease by 10% (80} (131}
Expenses Increase by 10% {3 3}
Decreass by 10% 3 3
Varlable [Impact of & movement In the underlylng variable
Moriallly risk Forinsurance conlracts providing death benefits, greater morlality ralas would lead 1o higher levels of claims,
Increasing assodiated claims cost and therafore reducing profit and sharsheldery’ equily.
Morbldlty risk The cost of haalth-relaled claims depends an bath the Incldencs of pollcyholders being diapnosad with a crifical

iiness or bscorming temporarlly or permanantly disabled and the duralien for which they remain temporarlly or
permanently disabled. Higher Lhan expecled incidence and durstion would he Hkely 1o Increase clalm costs,
reducing profit and shareholders' equity,

Disconlinuanca Ask | The impact of the disconlinuanca rate assumption depends on a rangs of faclors Including the type of cantracl, the
surrender value basls (where applicable) and the duration In-force,

C. Liquidity risk
Management of liquidity risk is designed to ensura that tha Group has lhe abiiity to meel Its financial abligations as they fall due.

The Group [$ exposed lo dally calls on lis avalleble cash resources from maturing policies, policy claims, surrenders and cashing \n ar
swilching between invesimenl porifelios.

Through the applicatian of a liquidity management policy the Group seeks lo maintain sufficient resources o meet lis obligations as they
fali due Including adverse scenarios for voluntary withdrawsls by policyholders,

nvesimenl durstions are malched with the expecied lime frames of liabllities 1o ensure \hal iabifilles are adequalely covered,

Each Investment portfollo has a small proportion of non-inked funds to provide immediate liquidily for any polieyholder that wishes lo
wilhdraw funds or switch porticlios,
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24. Risk Management {continued)
Maturity analysis

The labla below shows the maturlty of Ihe contractual undiscounled cash flows of the Group's finencial assets

and [labliilies, Whars the countarparly has dlacrefion In requesling immediate paymen withoul exit penaity, Yabililies have been

classified according lo the earllast time period in which the Group may be required to pay. Cash flows on dervaiive financlal insiruments

ara anelysed on a gross basls, unless hey are setiled nel. Lifa insurance contract Habillies / {asseis) cash flows are In relation to

matwity values payable.
2018 Batwanis Batween Over Carrying
Lesathan i yoor 14 2ysams 24 5yeans Syaars Total amount
$o0a $'000 $'000 $000 $'o000 1900
Financiat axsals
Gash and cash equivalents. 12801 - - 12,601 12,501
Rentritied cavh 19,268 - - - 10,268 10,288
Aszos arlslng (rom relnawonce contracts 18,080 - - 16,044 19,689
Financlat assets ol (ol volue through profil or loss 302,475 - - . 02476 302,475
Dearivetive financlal instrumaats 2397 . . . 897 8T
Loane aad othar recalvables 5,888 111 AT 1,632 8,108 TAS2
W51 748 " a7e 1,032 354,425 83,482
Financlal llablilites
Paysbles and othar Ananclal kabilitias 49,007 - 49,007 49,967
Darlvalive Knsnclal instrumants = - - 562 568 BER
Firanclal Sebiftes Life | racl 37,308 10,713 22,037 52,098 122,458 10w
47,205 10,713 22,89 52,4¢8 173,619 172,611
Hie Insuranae conkect Rablites f (assals) nel of
relnsuranca 1,051 612 2,281 5,308 9,335 {178,838)
2018 Batwéen Between Qvar Carrying
Lessthandyear 1EZyaars 1A Byears Byears Total amount
$'a00 $'o00 $'000 {00 $'000 $'000
Financlal ascats
GCash and cash aquivalenls 84011 em 01
Reslricted cash e 10087 . - 10,087 10,087
Aszots adelng from isinsurancs conlrects 17,765 - - 17,785 17.785
Financiol agasts ol ol valyo through profil or loss 316,885 s 315,805 {5485
Lashs and olhor receivables 15,005 f85 773 4052 20,818 1332
I54,656 11,073 m 4,082 _37'_01594 387,910
Flnanclat Habililes
Payables and olher financial abiftlss 47.521 Ar521 47521
Derivative financlal instroments 758 758 786
Financlal kabliities Lifa Investmont controcls La 49,173 0270 24,701 50,830 142,082 142,082
a7 460 #1276 U100 58,990 180,358 180,259
Life Insarance conkmct Rablites / (sssals) not of
relnsuance 1,200 997 2,504 5,806 10,897 {156,598)
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24, Risk Managament (continued)

D. Credit risk
Credit risk 's 1he sk of loss arising from faliure of a counterparty to meet Its conlraciual abligailons.

Gradit rish principally arises within the Group rom k In financlal instruments and reinsurer payment obligations.

The Group manages its exposure to credlt risk by investing and {ransacling with high credit quality financiet inslilulions, The Group
continuously montiors ihe credil quality of the tnstilutions that §t Invasts and transacts with and further minimises s credil exposure by
limiting the amount of funds placed or invasted with any one Institution at any lime. Credit isk with respect to rei 8 prog Is
minimised by placement of cover with a number of reinsurers with strong credit rafings.

Risk with respect lo debl secusilles s managed within the guidelines of the Group's SIPO. Mortgages and loans are managed by
generally requiring sscurity over propery.

The lollowing tahle provides Infarmation regarding the aggregaled credil sk exposure, Other financial asset categories are unrated.

2019 ARA+ to A~ BEB+ to BBB- BB+ lo B+ Unratad Tote
$'900 $'000 $'a00 $'b00 §000
Cash and cash oquivalonta 12,801 - - - 12,601
Reslricied cash - - - 10,288 10,268
Assels ariging from ralnsurance conliracts 19,809 - - - 19,888
Derivatives 287 - - - Ll H
Marngeges and loane - — - - 3,119 3,118
33,207 - - 13,387 484874
2018 ARA+10 A BEB* to BBB- BB+1a B- Unraled Total
e S0 $oa0 $000 $o
Cash and cash equivalenls |01 - a0
Restdcted cash - - - 10,087 19,087
Assels arising from relnsurance contracls 17,785 - 17,705
torigeges and loans — s 8.733 __B733
23,608 18,820 42,828

Included In the consolidaled statement of financial position are unitised funds of $237,194,000 {2018: $173,089,000) which are unraled
Unitised producls are invested within the guidelines of lha Group's SIPO. The SIPO requires Invesiments to be well diversified, sets
expasura limits for each class of asset and cradil rating, The Group closely monllors collaleral held for the morigages classifled a3 credit-
Impaired. Those collateral velated 10 morigages are held In order to mitigate polenlial fosses.

GConcentration of credit risk

Concentralian of credil fisk exists if a number of counterpariies are engaged In similar acthilles and have similar economic
characierislics Ihat would cause thelr ability to meet contractual abligations to be similarly affected by ch In Ic conditions.

The concenlration of credi risk on linancia! assets 's generally the carrying emount, net of any provision for impairment. The Group does
not expect any investment of reinsurance counterpariies to fait to meel their obligations given their high credit ralings.

B
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25, Related parties

Subsidiaries

Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited is the ultimate parent of the Group. The Company holds the following interests

in subsidiaries:

Nature of
Company activities
Fidelity Capital Guaranteed Bond Limited  Non-trading investment campany
Life and Advisory Services Limited Investment services
Fidelity Life Custodial Services Limitad Cuslodial/Trustee services

Class of
shares

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

All subsidraries are incorporated in New Zealand and have a balance date of 30 June,

Related party transactions

(a) Key management personnel compensation

Ownership

2019 2018
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

The key management personnel are all the Directors of the Company and the executives with the greatest authority for the

strategic direction and management of the Company.

Short-tarm benefits
Total

{b) Transactions with related parties
The following fransactions accurred with related parties;

Secured loans to shareholders

Balance as at 1 July
Loan repayments received - secured loans

Balance as at 30 June
Interest revenue from secured loans

Commission paid to related parties

comprise;

Shareholders as at 30 June who held agency agreements with the
Group

2019 2018
$'000 $000
5,578 5679
5578 5,679
2019 2018
$'000 $000
672 1,169
(672) (497)
- 672
18 57
4,295 3,616
4,295 3616
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25. Related party transactions {continued)

(c) Outstanding balances
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to fransactions with
related parties:

2018 2018
$'000 $'000

Loans receivable from sharsholders - 672
Advisor accounts payable to shareholders (10) (15)

{d} Terms and conditions

Commissions paid to shareholders

Commissions paid to shareholders wha hold agency agreements with the Group are pald at standard rates applicabis to
other commission agents.

Loans made to shareholders

Loans secured by mortgages over properties or other assels ara made to shareholders during the normal course of
business. The average annual interest rate was 5.9% (2018: 5.9%) on a mixture of fixed and floating rates, The loans are
for periods of up to 25 years,

26. Contingent liabilities and commitments

There are no material contractual capital commitments at balance date for the acquisition of property, plant and equiptnent
or intangible assets, (2018. nil).

The Group has the following non-cancellable operating lease commitments payable for rental of commercial office space,
software licences, motor vehicles and office equipment:

2019 2018
$'000 $'600

Within cne year 278 1,344
Later than one year but not later than five years 366 3,820
G644 5,164

The Group has tha following non-cancellable operating lease commitments receivable for the rental of commercial office
space in Auckland:

2018 2018

$'000 $'000
Within one year 263 263
Later than one year but not later than five years 788 1,051
Later than five years 438 438
1,489 1,752

27. Events occurring after balance date

Restricted cash of $10,000,000 which was held in escrow to support warranties and indemnities as part of a Subscription
Agreement with NZ Super was fully released on 8 July 2019,
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28. Earnings per shara
(1) Basic eamings per share

Basic eamings per share is caleulsted by dividing the proiit atiributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average

number of erdinary shares on Issus during the year.

20198
$'000
Total profil for tha year sitributable to the owners of the Company 18,254
Shares
Welghted average number of ordinary shares on Issue 2,091,440
Baslc earnings per share $
73

{#} Dituted eamings per shara
There Is no dilution In eamings per share as ail shares have been issued

29, Statutory Fund

Fidelily Life oparates under IPSA which requires that its life business Is conducted within at least one statutory fund.

2018
$'000
14,118

Shares
1,753,739

$
8.05

Investmenls held in the life stalutory fund can only be used in accordance with the relevant regulalory restrictions imposed undar
IPEA and associated rules and regulations. The main restriclions are that the assets in a ife statutary fund csn only be used to
meel the lfabilities and expenses of the life stalutory fund, Yo acquire investments to further the business of the life statulory fund

or as distribullons provided salvency, capital adequacy and other regulatory requirements are met.

The following table shows a summary of the consolidaled balances of the Company's stalutory fund, Fidelity Life Statutory Fund

Number 1

2019 2018
Income statemant $'000 $'000
Insurance premium revenue 269,493 259,413
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers {119,181) (117,261)
Invesiment income 14,436 18,379
Other Income 7,180 6,729
Claims expense {125,715) {107,822
Reinsurance recoveries 82,803 73,192
Commission and operating expensas {113,760} {120,188)
Net change in life insurance contraot assets 22,240 22,512
Net change in ife investment coniract liablliles {5,477) {14,492)
Income tax expense {13,079) {10,273)
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company {non-pariicipating) 18,950 14,189
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,512 4,84
Assela arising from relnsurance cantracts 19,889 17,785
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 259,927 266,752
Derivative financial Instrumenis say “
Life insurance contract assels 220,295 188,226
Loans and other recelvables 6,883 15,424
Property, pfant and equipment 30,074 26.887
Deferred tax assets 31,673 29,384
Intangible assets 2,835 3.049
Other assets - 1,676
Total assets 578,885 554,184
Liabilitles
Payables and other financial liabililles 46,873 45 334
Derivative financial Insirumenis - 756
Deferred tax liabilities 886,067 73,562
Life insurance coniract liabilities ceded under reinsurance 41,457 M 528
Life invesiment contract liablities 122,956 142,082
Deferred income 2,734 3,417
Total liahilities 300,087 296,779
Net agsots 278,798 257 405

There are no other restricllons on the use of assets invested for palicyholder benefits, nor any resirictions on legal tRies to assels
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited

We have audited the consolidated financial statements which comprise:

¢ the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019;

« the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

¢ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
» the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

» the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

» the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fidelity Life Assurance
Company Limited (the Company), including its subsidiaries (the Group), present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2019, its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (N2 IFRS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs
(NZ)) and International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further deseribed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consclidated financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised)
Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (PES 1) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Cur firm carries out other services for the Group in the areas of assurance, tax compliance, tax
advisory and training services. In addition, our Firm has insurance arrangements with the Group
covering partners and employees within the Firm. Those arrangements were contracted on normal
terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the Group. Certain partners and employees of
our firm may also individually deal with the Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of
trading activities of the Group. These matters have not impaired our independence as auditor of the
Group.

|
PriceusaterhouseCoopers, 188 Quay Street, Private Bag 92162, Auckland 1142, New Zealand
T: +64 9 355 8000, F: +64 9 355 8001, pwe.co.nz
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Our audit approach

Ovelviim

An audit is designed to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Maleriality

Overall Group materiality: $ 2.69 million, which
represents approximately 1% of insurance premium
revenue.

We chose insurance premium revenue as the benchmark
because, in our view, it is the benchmark against which
the performance of the Group is most commonly
measured by users, and is a generally accepted
benchmark within the life insurance industry.

Audit scope

We have determined that there are three key audit

Key audit matters:

muatters

= Measurement of life insurance contract assets and life
insurance contract liabilities ceded under reinsurance

¢ Information Technology (IT) systems
»  Recoverability of the deferred tax asset on tax losses

Materinlity
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
including the overall Group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out
above. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit,
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, hoth
individually and in aggregate on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Aundit scope

‘We designed our audit by assessing the risks of material misstatement in the consclidated financial
statements and our application of materiality. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls including among other matters, consideration of whether
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We tatlored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the
Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in
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the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

under reinsurance

As at 30 June 2019 the Group has life
insurance contract assets of $220 million
(30 June 2018: $188 million), life
insurance contract liabilities ceded under
reinsurance of $41 million (30 June 2018:
$32 millicn).

The Directors' valuation of these balances
involves complex and subjective
judgements about future avents, both
internal and external to the business, for
which small changes in assumptions can
result in material impact to the
measurement of these balances.

We considered this a key audit matter due
to the subjective actuarial judgements
made by the Directors. The key actuarial
assumptions include:

+ The cost of providing benefits and
administering these contracts
{maintenance expenses);

s Mortality and morbidity experience on
life insurance products;

= Persistency (or discontinuance)
experience, which affects the Group’s
ability to recover the cost of acquiring
new business over the lives of the
contracts;

» Bonus rates per annum for classes of
participating business; and

¢ Long-term interest rates which affect
the rate at which cash flows are
discounted (discount rates).

The Directors perform a liability adequacy
test (at individual related product level) to
ensure that any deficiency in the
measurement of life insurance contract
liabilities are appropriately recognised at
_the reporting date. This involves a

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(1) Measurement of life msurance eontract assets and lifie insuranee contract labilities ceded

B Together with PwC actuarial experts, we:

Assessed the reasonableness of the key actuarial
assumptions including the amount, timing and
duration of all future payments and premiums,
rates of discontinuance, mortality and morbidity
rates, maintenance expenses, bonus rates and
discount rates. Our assessment of the assumptions
included:

o Obtaining an understanding of, and
testing, the controls in place to determine
the assumptions;

o Examining the approach used by
management to derive the assumptions
by applying our industry knowledge and
experience;

) Challenging the key assumptions used by
management against past experience,
market observable data (as applicable)
and our experience of market practice.

Assessed the valuation methodologies used by
applying our industry knowledge and experience
to compare whether the methodologies and
changes to those are consistent with recognised
actuarial practices and expectations derived from
market experience,

Checked the calculation of the liability adequacy
test and assessed the outcome in order {o ascertain
whether the insurance contract liabilities are
adequate in the context of a valuation on the best
estimate assumptions at reporting date.

Policy data is a key input to the actuarial estimates.
Accordingly, we:

Evaluated the design effectiveness and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over
underwriting and policy administration processes;
and
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

comparison of the amount of life
insurance contract liabilities against the
estimated future cash flows calculated
based on best estimate assumptions. Any
deficiencies in the measurement of life
insurance contract liabilities are
recognised through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,

Refer to the following notes in the Group's
consolidated financial statements: Note 2
for critical accounting estimates and
judgements and Note 3 for actuarial
methods and policies.

(2} Information [ ebimuloyy (1) systems

Tested the completeness and accuracy of data
between source and actuarial valuation systems.

We focused on this area because the
Group has a complex network of IT
systetns, inchuding multiple
administration systems feeding the
general ledger, requiring a significant
extent of audit effort.

The Group has a number of key controls in
place, including key data reconciliations,
as well as controls preventing
unauthorised access to systems and data.

To obtain assurance on the information feeding into
the general ledger from the different administration
systems, we executed the following procedures:

Through the involvement of our IT experts, we
evaluated the design effectiveness and tested the
operating effectiveness of certain controls over the
continued integrity of the IT systems that are
relevant to financial reporting.

‘We carried out direct tests, on a sample basis, of
systemn functionality in order to agsess the
operation of key systemn enforced access controls.

On a targeted basis, we tested key data
reconciliations as well as the accuracy and
completeness of data transfers between the
administration systems and the general ledger
and, where applicable, assessed the
reasonableness of reconeiling items.

{3} Revoverability of the de;ﬁ::r'r'cﬂl‘-ax asset on tax losses

The Group has a deferred tax asset
balance of $34 million, of which $29
million relates to deferred tax assets
arising from past tax losses,

We considered recoverability of the
deferred tax asset a key audit matter
because:
+ significant management judgement is
involved in forecasting future taxable
_profits and the period over which it is

Together with our actuarial and tax specialists, we
assessed the recoverability of the deferred tax asset on
tax losses by:

assessing the reasonableness of the forecasted
taxable profits by comparing prior years actual
results with the forecasted financial results.

considering forecasted taxable profits arising from
the forecasted financial results and the period over
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Key audit malter How ouy audit addressed the key audit matter
probable such losses will be utilised; which it is probable that sufficient taxable profits
and will be generated to utilise the losses; and

¢ the utilisation of the tax losses is « considering whether shareholder continuity was
subject to shareholder continuity maintained at balance date and whether any
being maintained from the time the known future events indicated shareholder
losses were generated until the time continuity may not be maintained until the time
the losses are utilised., the losses are utilised.

Refer to the following notes in the Group's
consolidated financial statements: Note 2
for critical accounting estimates and
judgements and Note 8 for deferred tax
assets.

Information other than the finuncial statements and auditor's report

The Directors are responsible for the annual report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information included in the annual report and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. At the time of our audit, there
was no other information available to us.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible, on behalf of the Company, for the preparation and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financiul statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements, as a whole, are free frotn material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (NZ) and ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the
External Reporting Board’s website at:

https:/fwww xrb.govtay/stundards-for-assurance. practibonessfanditors-responsibilities andit
report-1/

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Who we report to

This report is made solely to the Company’s shareholders, as a body. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state those matters which we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s shareholders, as a bedy, for our
audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Michele
Embling.

For and on behalf of:

(/?Wm@@m

Chartered Accountants Auckland
13 September 2019



Appointed Actuary’s review of

Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited at 30 June 2019

This return is prepared under sections 77 and 78 of the Insurance (Prudential Supervision)
Act 2010 which reguires that a licensed insurer must ensure that the actuarial information
contained in, or used in the preparation of, financlal statements of the insurer and any group
financial statements is reviewed by the Appointed Actuary.

In relation to the Financial Statements for Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited for the
year ended 30 June 2019 and as that date, | confirm the following:

Appointed Actuary:

Work undertaken:

Scope and limitations

Relationship with insurer

Information:;

Actuarial Opinion.

John Laurence Smith

The review of the actuarial information contained in, or used in
the preparation of, financia!l statements of the insurer and group
was conducted in accordance with the Solvency Standard for
Life Insurance Business (RBNZ, December 2014)

The actuarial information reviewed was:

{(a) information relating to an insurer's calculations of
premiums, claims, reserves, dividends, insurance and
annuity rates, and technical provisions; and

(b) information relating to assessments of the probability of
uncertain future events occurring and the financial
implications for the insurer if those events do occur; and

(c) information specified in the Solvency Standard for Life
Insurance Business as actuarial information for the
purposes of this review.

There were no restrictions on the scope of my investigation.

The return is provided as a statutory disclosure by Fidelty Life
Assurance Company Limited (and is the same for both the
insurer and group). No warranty is provided to third parties for
any other purpose.

I am a permanent full-time employee of Fidelity Life Assurance
Company Limited. | do not own any shares in Fidelity Life
Assurance Company Limited.

| obtained all information and explanations that | required.

In my actuarial opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

(i) the actuarial information contained in the insurer and
group financial statements at and in the year to 30 June
2019 has been appropriately included in those
statements,



Solvency margin

Statutory Funds:

Jot L

John Smith
Appointed Actuary
29 October 2019

(i) the actuarial information used in the preparation of the
insurer and group financial statements at and in the year
to 30 June 2019 has been used appropriately.

In my actuarial opinion and from an actuarial perspective:
Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited (licensed insurer) is
maintaining the solvency margin calculated under the solvency
standard for life insurance business (IPSA 21(2)(b))

In my actuarial opinion and from an actuarial perspective:
Fidelity Life Assurance Company Limited (licensed insurer) will
maintain the solvency margin in respect of the Fidelity Life
Statutory Fund No. 1 calculated under the solvency standard for
life insurance business (IPSA 21(2)(c)).
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